
Finance and Government Committee – May 04, 2021   Page 1 of 3 

 

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

FINANCE AND GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 300 W. MAIN STREET 

TUESDAY, MAY 04, 2021 AT 2:00 PM 

AMENDED AGENDA 

CALL TO ORDER 

STAFF PRESENTATIONS 

1. Internal Audit FY21 2nd Quarter Report 

2. Second Quarter FY21 – Parks Enterprise Financial Reports 

3. Homestead Exemption Discussion 

4. Insurance Fund Monthly Review 

CONSENT AGENDA 

The full agenda has been posted on the city's website, www.gptx.org, for those who may want to view this 

agenda in more detail. Citizens may speak for five minutes on any item on the agenda by completing and 

submitting a speaker card. 

5. Minutes from the April 6, 2021, Finance and Government Committee Meeting 

6. Quarterly Investment Report 

7. Ratify purchase, replacement and installation of the Dectron unit, at the Epic, from McMillan 

James, in the amount of $158,517, through a TIPS contract and include a contingency in the 

amount of $5,000 for a total of $163,517 

8. Contract with GameTime (Total Recreation Products) in the amount of $138,013.56; and 

approve a 5% contingency in the amount of $6,900.68 for a total amount of $144,914.24 for the 

removal, replacement and installation of playground equipment at Jennifer McFalls West Park 

 

9. Ordinance amending the FY 2020/2021 Cemetery Operating Fund Budget; contract with Trane 

in the amount of $59,428 plus a 5% contingency of $2,972  for the complete replacement of 

Grand Prairie Memorial Gardens Administration and Maintenance shop  HVAC systems 

through an existing City Price Agreement; purchase of building management system controls 

from Enviromatic Systems in the amount of $23,100 plus a 5% contingency of $1,155 through 

an existing City Price Agreement 

ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION 
 

10. Change Order/Amendment No. 1 with Hill & Wilkinson General Contractors in the amount of 

1



Finance and Government Committee – May 04, 2021   Page 2 of 3 

$3,873,421 for the balance of construction cost for Phase Three of the Civic Campus Master 

Plan project; 5% owner-controlled contingency in the amount of $193,671; $25,000 allowance 

for security; $25,000 allowance for low voltage work; plus a $50,000 allowance for franchise 

utility work for a total funding request of $4,167,092 

11. Approve a one-time cost of living payment for non-civil service City of Grand Prairie 

employees in the total amount of $1.9 million 

12. Ordinance amending the FY 2020/2021 Capital Improvements Projects Budget; Professional 

Consultant Contract with Freese and Nichols, Inc. for the Main Street Roadway Improvements 

in the amount of $757,500  

13. An Ordinance amending the Step Plan Pay Scales for Grand Prairie Police and Fire Civil 

Service Employees  

14. Resolution authorizing the City Manager to accept American Rescue Plan Act funding of 

approximately $37,541,000 

 

15. Resolution authorizing an Economic Development Agreement for a $2,000,000 Cash Grant and 

Fifty-Year Ground Lease with Bolder One, LLC, for the Operation of an Adventure Park at 

EpicCentral for a calculated percentage of Net Operating Profit as Rent (estimated 

approximately 25%) 

16. Resolution granting 380 Incentive Agreement and entering into a separated sales tax contract 

with Aerofirma Corporation for the Prairie Gate Phase Two Project to rebate 50% of the $.01 

documented general sales tax revenue on construction materials purchased to complete the new 

development  

17. Resolution denying Oncor Electric Delivery Company's application to increase its Distribution 

Cost Recovery Factor to increase electric distribution rates within the City 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Finance and Government Committee may conduct a closed session pursuant to Chapter 551, 

Subchapter D of the Government Code, V.T.C.A., to discuss any of the following: 

(1)        Section 551.071 “Consultation with Attorney” 

(2)        Section 551.072 “Deliberation Regarding Real Property” 

(3)        Section 551.074 “Personnel Matters” 

(4)        Section 551.087 “Deliberations Regarding Economic Development Negotiations.”  

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

Citizens may speak during Citizen Comments for up to five minutes on any item not on the agenda by 

completing and submitting a speaker card. 

ADJOURNMENT 

2



Finance and Government Committee – May 04, 2021   Page 3 of 3 

The Grand Prairie City Hall is accessible to people with disabilities. If you need assistance in 

participating in this meeting due to a disability as defined under the ADA, please call 972 237 8018 or 

email Gloria Colvin (gcolvin@gptx.org) at least three (3) business days prior to the scheduled meeting to 

request an accommodation. 

Certification 

In accordance with Chapter 551, Subchapter C of the Government Code, V.T.C.A, the Finance and 

Government Committee agenda was prepared and posted April 30, 2021. 

 

 

Mona Lisa Galicia, City Secretary 

 

 

3



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 05/04/2021 

REQUESTER: Cathy Patrick 

PRESENTER: Cathy Patrick, Audit Services Director 

TITLE: Internal Audit FY21 2nd Quarter Report 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: N/A 

  

ANALYSIS: 

Internal Audit FY21 2nd Quarter Report 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4

Item 1.



FIELD WORK REPORT HOURS IMPLEMENTATION IMPLEMENTATION FOLLOW-UP

COMPLETED REPORTS DEPARTMENT COMPLETE DATE TO DATE PLAN COMPLETE REVIEW

CMO Payroll Review City Manager Office 2/11/2021 2/12/2021 12 N N/A N/A

Library System Inventory Review Library 2/9/2021 2/9/2021 44 N NA NA

Golden Chalet Occupancy Tax Review Marketing 2/25/2021 2/25/2021 21 N N/A N/A

Motel 6 Hwy 360 Occupancy Tax Review Marketing 2/9/2021 2/9/2021 11 N N/A N/A

Epic Waters Contract Compliance Parks, Art & Recreation 3/22/2021 3/22/2021 92 N N/A N/A

Loyd Park Revenue Review Parks, Art & Recreation 1/5/2021 1/6/2021 100 N NA 6/22/2021

Prairie Lakes Golf Course Inventory Review Parks, Art & Recreation 1/26/2021 1/26/2021 49 Y 4/1/2021 4/1/2021

Streets Inventory Follow-Up Review Public Works 1/20/2021 1/21/2021 20 Y 9/30/2021 6/1/2021

Work In Progress

EnerGov Software Implementation 304

Capital Assets Reconciliation 136

ERP Software Replacement 89

Economic Development Contract Procedures 59

Lynn Creek Marina Contract Compliance Review 56

Departmental Policies 50

Centralize Accounts Receivable 15

Miscellaneous Projects

IT Survey 73 Complete

Budget Assistance 59 Complete

Fire Vaccination Site 59 Continual

Procurement Card Review 36 Continual

Housing Promissory Notes & Portability Checks 31 Continual

Cash Handling Training 25 Continual

Finance Investment Reconciliations 24 Continual

Police Seizure Review 22 Continual

Utility Audits 21 Continual

Finance CTP Reviews 21 Continual

Rebate Contracts (380 Agreements) Certification Review 15 Continual

AUDIT SERVICES DEPARTMENT

Fiscal Year 2021
2nd Quarter

5

Item 1.



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 05/04/2021 

REQUESTER: Gary Yakesch 

PRESENTER: Gary Yakesch, Assistant Director Parks, Arts, & Recreation 

TITLE: Second Quarter FY21 – Parks Enterprise Financial Reports 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Presentation Only 

  

ANALYSIS: 

Second Quarter Fiscal Year 2021 Financial Report Presentation – Parks Enterprise Financial Reports 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

None Presentation Only 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6

Item 2.



7

Item 2.



8

Item 2.



9

Item 2.



10

Item 2.



11

Item 2.



12

Item 2.



13

Item 2.



14

Item 2.



15

Item 2.



16

Item 2.



17

Item 2.



18

Item 2.



19

Item 2.



20

Item 2.



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 05/04/2021 

REQUESTER: Cheryl DeLeon, Deputy City Manager 

PRESENTER: Cheryl DeLeon, Deputy City Manager 

TITLE: Homestead Exemption Discussion 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: None  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

21

Item 3.



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 05/04/2021 

REQUESTER: Lisa Norris, Human Resources Director 

PRESENTER: Lisa Norris, Human Resources Director 

TITLE: Insurance Fund Monthly Review 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Review Only 

  

ANALYSIS: 

The Insurance Fund is complete through March 2021.  

On Revenues, there is nothing notable.  Projections are running right at budget. 

For expenses, there a few notable items: 

1. Active claims continue to run fairly high with March reaching $1,713,640 (columns 7, row 29).  

However, we still expect to land, by fiscal year-end at 84% of the budget reaching only 

$12,883,545. 

2. Retiree claims (row 30) in March reached $177,176.  This puts us at $2,818,013 projected for 

year-end, which is 125% of the budget.  I suspect this number will continue to come down as the 

months progress – thereby bringing down the year-end projection as we move forward. 

3. Overall, the fund remains in great shape. We have an operating balance (column 8 in grey, row 

39) of $1,777,045 and expect to end the year with an Ending Resource Balance (column 11, row 

45) of $8.3 million. 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

None. Information Only. 

 

 

22

Item 4.



23

Item 4.



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: May 4, 2021 

REQUESTER: Sheryl Osborn 

PRESENTER: Chairman Giessner 

TITLE: Minutes from the April 6, 2021, Finance and Government Committee 

Meeting 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

24

Item 5.



 
 

 

MINUTES 

CITY COUNCIL FINANCE AND GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE 

April 6, 2021 

 

The City of Grand Prairie Finance and Government Committee convened at 2:39 p.m. on Tuesday, April 

6, 2021, in the City Council Chambers, 300 West Main Street, Grand Prairie, Texas.  The following 

persons were in attendance: 

 

 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT             

Greg Giessner, Chairman       

Jorja Clemson, Mayor Pro Tem 

Mike Del Bosque, Deputy Mayor Pro Tem  

 

Jim Sabonis, Hilltop Securities, Guest  

 

Chairman Giessner called the meeting to order. 

 

 

STAFF PRESENTATIONS 

Todd Gaston, HR Manager, presented information on the employee insurance fund, month ending 

February 2021. 

 Revenues: Projections are running at budget 

 Expenditures:  

o Employee claims are $1,085,192. Active claims continue to run high. The expectation is that 

at fiscal year-end, we will be at 81% of the budget, or $12,352,871. 

o Retiree claims dropped significantly from prior months, reaching only $152,206.  The drop is 

likely due to restarting deductibles for the new year. January costs were likely claims being 

paid from services received in late November and December 2020. Projections still use the 

“highest average monthly” cost for the seven remaining months, which is the current fiscal 

year average. 

o We are at $2,956,393 projected for year-end, which is 132% of the budget. However, we 

expect this number to continue to decrease as the months progress, which will bring down the 

year-end projection. 

 Our Operating Balance remains in great shape at $2,073,741. We expect to end the year with 

Ending Resource Balance of $8,800,000. 

 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

1. Minutes of the March 2, 2021 Finance and Government Committee meeting 

 

2. Authorize Increases in 2021 Municipal Access Line Fees for Use of Rights of Way by Certified 

Telecommunications Providers 

25

Item 5.



City Council Finance and Government Committee Meeting Minutes 

April 6, 2021 

 

- 2 - 

 

 

3. Change order #2 with William H. Company in the amount of $42,279.22 for reconstruction of 

existing concrete flume and rep-rap, additional drainage, grading, replacement of concrete trail 

sections, and supply and hauling of recycled concrete for soft trail development 

 

4. Change order #4 with Pacheco Koch Consulting Engineers, Inc. in the amount of $27,000 to 

perform a hydraulic analysis of Johnson Creek for the proposed piers supporting the trail canopy 

awning, and coordination with Union Pacific Railroad requirements for a pedestrian trail canopy 

under existing railroad bridge for the Great Southwest Nature Park 

 

5. Resolution authorizing the submission of projects for consideration as part of the Tarrant County 

2021 Bond Program  

 

Mayor Pro Tem Jorja Clemson moved to approve all six items on the Consent Agenda. Deputy Mayor 

Pro Tem Mike Del Bosque seconded the motion. The motion carried 3-0, with no abstentions.  

 

 

ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION 

 

6. Ordinance amending the FY 2020/2021 Capital Improvements Projects Budget in the amount of 

$691,000 for park venue facility enhancements (Charley Taylor Recreation Center, Dalworth 

Recreation Center, Uptown Theater, Ruthe Jackson Center, Farmers Market, The Summit, 

Aquatics, Park Maintenance, McFalls Park Playground, and Sycamore Park Playground) 

 

Parks and Recreation Director, Duane Strawn, reviewed details of the facilities included in the 

proposed Ordinance amendment, which focuses on infrastructure. Deputy Mayor Pro Tem Mike 

Del Bosque moved to approve the proposed ordinance amendment, Mayor Pro Tem Jorja 

Clemson seconded, and the motion carried 3-0, with no abstentions. 

 

7. Ordinance amending the FY 2020/2021 General Fund Budget; Transfer to the Grant Fund-

Disaster Relief (300598) and project activity (COVIDASGN) for assignment to projects as 

designated by the COO and City Manager. 

 

Comptroller, Susan Sanders, presented information on the proposed Ordinance amendment. 

Points made during the presentation and subsequent discussion included: 

 This ordinance is to recommend an amendment of the FY21 General Fund Budget to 

transfer $9.1M to the Grant Fund (COVIDASIGN) activity for assignment to projects as 

designated by the COO and City Manager. 

 Revenues exceeded expectation at the end of FY20, largely due to CARES funding and 

reimbursements from Dallas County and Tarrant County.  

 All CARES funds have been exhausted as of 9/30/2020. 

 $9.1M of the resulting General Fund surplus will be set aside in the Grant Fund for 

tracking special projects. 

 Deputy City Manager Cheryl De Leon clarified that the funds are not legally restricted, 

but would be under Council discretion. 

 

26

Item 5.



City Council Finance and Government Committee Meeting Minutes 

April 6, 2021 

 

- 3 - 

 

Deputy Mayor Pro Tem Mike Del Bosque moved to approve the Ordinance amendment, Mayor 

Pro Tem Georgia Clemson seconded, and the motion carried 3-0, with no abstentions. 

  

8. Discussion and consideration of all matters incident and related to approving and authorizing 

publication of notice of intention to issue certificates of obligation in a principal amount not to 

exceed $17,000,000, including the adoption of a resolution pertaining to thereto 

 

Treasury and Debt Manager, Brady Olsen, presented information stating that the purpose of the 

resolution was to inform the public that the City may issue up to $17M in debt in June for the 

public purpose regarding certain elements of the Epic project. Posting the notice now would give 

the City flexibility to move forward with the project in conjunction with the Bond election. Mr. 

Jim Sabonis with Hilltop Securities was present and available for questions. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Jorja Clemson moved to approve the authorization of public notice, Deputy 

Mayor Mike Del Bosque seconded, and the motion carried 3-0, with no abstentions. 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

 The Finance and Government Committee meeting was adjourned at 3:02 p.m. so that an Executive 

Session could be convened.  

 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Chairman Greg Giessner convened a closed Executive Session at 3:05 p.m. pursuant to Chapter 551, 

Subchapter D of the Government Code, V.T.C.A., to discuss one or more of the following: 

(1) Section 551.071 “Consultation with Attorney” 

(2) Section 551.072 “Deliberation regarding Real Property” 

(3) Section 551.074 “Personnel Matters” 

(4) Section 551.087 “Deliberations Regarding Economic Development Negotiations.”   

 

This meeting will discuss Section 551.072 “Deliberation regarding Real Property” and 551.087 

“Deliberations Regarding Economic Development Negotiations.” 

 

The Executive Session of the Finance and Government Committee meeting adjourned at 3:54 pm. 

 

 

FINANCE AND GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE MEETING RECONVENED 

 The regular session of the Finance and Government Committee meeting reconvened at 3:54 p.m. 

  

 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

None 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

27

Item 5.



City Council Finance and Government Committee Meeting Minutes 

April 6, 2021 

 

- 4 - 

 

  

There being no further business, the Finance and Government Committee meeting adjourned at 3:55 

p.m. 

 

 

 

                                                                                                   

____________________________________  ___________________________________   

Greg Giessner, Chairman    Date 

Finance and Government Committee              

28

Item 5.



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 05/04/2021 

REQUESTER: Brady Olsen 

PRESENTER: Brady Olsen, Treasury and Debt Manager 

TITLE: Quarterly Investment Report 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Accept 

  

ANALYSIS: 

Moving forward, we would like provide F&G our quarterly investment report in the agenda packet. This 

is the same legally required report you have been receiving in administrative updates. The report 

outlines where the City’s cash and investments are held throughout the year.  

In general, as market rates decrease in the short term, staff continues to build a laddered portfolio, filling 

in any gaps.  Laddering bonds allows flexibility to invest in different credit and interest rate 

environments and provide regular liquidity for operating needs. We continue to anticipate low interest 

returns in the coming year as the Fed keeps a rate close to 0. 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

The city budgeted $4 million in investment returns for the FYE 2021, and we are on target to hit that 

projection. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

29

Item 6.



Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 

30

Item 6.



31

Item 6.



32

Item 6.



33

Item 6.



34

Item 6.



35

Item 6.



36

Item 6.



37

Item 6.



38

Item 6.



39

Item 6.



40

Item 6.



41

Item 6.



42

Item 6.



43

Item 6.



44

Item 6.



45

Item 6.



46

Item 6.



47

Item 6.



48

Item 6.



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 05/04/2021 

REQUESTER: Erin Hart, Assistant Director of Operation 

PRESENTER: Duane Strawn, Director of Parks, Arts and Recreation 

TITLE: Ratify purchase, replacement and installation of the Dectron unit, at the 

Epic, from McMillan James, in the amount of $158,517, through a 

TIPS contract and include a contingency in the amount of $5,000 for a 

total of $163,517 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

ANALYSIS: 

Natatorium, suffered significant damage and is unable to function. After extensive research and 

investigation, staff was provided a recommendation to fully replace the existing Dectron unit. Staff 

received a proposal from McMillan James in the amount of $163,517 for removal and disposal of the 

existing unit, replacement of the new unit, and the full installation through their TIPS contract #200201. 
 

Chapter 271.102 of the Local Government Code authorizes local governments to participate in a 

cooperative purchasing program with another local government or local cooperative organization. In lieu 

of competitive bidding, items and services may be purchased through such agreements as the 

agreements have already been bid by the sponsoring entity or agency. The City of Grand Prairie has 

master interlocal cooperative agreements with various entities including The Cooperative Purchasing 

System, TIPS. 

TIPS contract #200201 and is set to expire April 30, 2022.   

This item was presented to the Finance and Government Committee on May 4, 2021 for review and 

approval. 

 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

Funding for the purchase of Dectron unit, for the Epic, in the amount of $158,517 with a contingency of 

$5,000 for a total of $163,517 is approved to be paid from the Risk Fund, 212110-64020.  A claim was 

filed with TML and was approved.  TML paid the cost of repair in full ($158,517 less a $10,000 

deductible).  

 

49

Item 7.



CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

OPERATING BUDGET EXPENDITURE INFORMATION 

 

 

 

 

 

FUND:   Risk Fund 

     

AGENCY:   HR Legal Services     

 

ACCOUNTING UNIT: 212110 

     

AVAILABLE:  64020, Property Losses, $292,396.07 

    Account Code, Description, and amount available 

 

STAFF CONTACT:  Erin Hart x8110; ehart@gptx.org 

 

VENDOR NUMBER:  15421 

 

VENDOR NAME:  McMillan James. 

 

CONTINGENCY: $5,000 

 

50

Item 7.



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 05/04/2021 

REQUESTER: Chip Nami, Business Operations Manager 

PRESENTER: Duane Strawn, Director of Parks, Arts and Recreation 

TITLE: Contract with GameTime (Total Recreation Products) in the amount of 

$138,013.56; and approve a 5% contingency in the amount of 

$6,900.68 for a total amount of $144,914.24 for the removal, 

replacement and installation of playground equipment at Jennifer 

McFalls West Park 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

ANALYSIS: 

The existing playground at Jennifer McFalls West Park was installed prior to 2000.  At over 20 years 

old, it has reached its service life and should be replaced for safety reasons.  GameTime (Total 

Recreation Products) has submitted a proposal for replacement equipment that is equal to or exceeds 

the play value of the current playground through their BuyBoard contract #592-19 which expires 

9/29/2022. 
 

Chapter 791 of the Texas Government code, also known as the Interlocal Cooperation 

Contracts Act, authorizes all local governments to contract with each other to perform 

governmental functions or services including administrative functions normally 

associated with the operations of government such as purchasing of necessary equipment 

supplies and services. The City of Grand Prairie does not need to competitively bid items 

purchased through such agreements as they have already been bid by the sponsoring 

entity of agency. The City of Grand Prairie has master interlocal cooperative agreements 

with various entities including BuyBoard.   

 

This item was presented to the Finance and Government Committee on May 4, 2021 

and received               recommendation for approval by the City Council. 

 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

Funding in the amount of $144,914.24 is available in the Parks Capital Projects Fund (317193), WO 

#02111703 (Playground Replacements) 

51

Item 8.



Fund/Activity Account:

Project Title:

Current Request:

1 2 3 2+3 1+3

ACCOUNT CURRENT AVAILABLE CURRENT REVISED AMENDED

DESCRIPTION BUDGET BALANCE REQUEST BALANCE BUDGET

Misc Improvement (68020) $192,000 $192,000 $0 $192,000 $192,000

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

TOTAL $192,000 $192,000 $0 $192,000 $192,000

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE

CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET SUMMARY

317193 - 02111703

Playground Replacement

$0.00

52

Item 8.



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

ORDINANCE 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 05/04/2021 

REQUESTER: Gary Yakesch , Assistant Director Parks, Arts & Recreation 

PRESENTER: Duane Strawn, Director Parks, Arts & Recreation 

TITLE: 
Ordinance amending the FY 2020/2021 Cemetery Operating Fund 

Budget; contract with Trane in the amount of $59,428 plus a 5% 

contingency of $2,972  for the complete replacement of Grand Prairie 

Memorial Gardens Administration and Maintenance shop  HVAC 

systems through an existing City Price Agreement; purchase of building 

management system controls from Enviromatic Systems in the amount 

of $23,100 plus a 5% contingency of $1,155 through an existing City 

Price Agreement 

ACTION: Approve  

  

ANALYSIS: 

 

HVAC systems that service both the administration and maintenance areas at Grand Prairie Memorial 

Gardens have reached the end of their useful life.   Increasing repair costs and reliability concerns 

prompted the need for the immediate replacement of these HVAC systems.   Once installed, the HVAC 

systems will need to be connected to our control system by a Enviromatic Systems and this conversion 

will coincide with the installation. 

The administration area HVAC systems will have a replacement cost of $33,830 plus a 5% contingency 

of $1,692 for a total not to exceed cost of $35,522; the maintenance area HVAC systems will have a 

replacement cost of $25,598 plus a 5% contingency of $1,280 for a total not to exceed cost of $26,878. 

Trane has submitted proposals for both areas through an existing City Price Agreement utilizing their 

OMNIA Partners contract #15-JLP-023.  

Enviromatic Systems submitted a proposal for the building management system controls in the amount 

of $23,100 plus a 5% contingency of $1,155 for a total not to exceed cost of $24,255.  The building 

management systems will be installed using an existing City price agreement with Enviromatic 

Systems.   

  

53

Item 9.



Page 2 of 2 

 

The total project cost of $86,655 to replace the Grand Prairie Memorial Garden HVAC systems: 

Administration HVAC Including Contingency   $35,522 

Fitness RTU Including Contingency    $26,878 

Enviromatic System Controls Including Contingency $24,255 

         $86,655 

 

Trane’s city price agreement expires September 30, 2021; Enviromatic’s city price agreement expires 

11/30/2021. 

This item was presented to the Finance and Government Committee on May 4, 2021 for review and 

approval. 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

Funding for the total project cost of $86,655 is available by approving an ordinance to transfer and 

appropriate $86,655 from the unobligated fund balance in the Cemetery Fund (316210) to account 

68014 (HVAC Systems). 

BODY 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, AMENDING THE               

FY 2020/2021 CEMETERY OPERATING FUND BUDGET BY TRANSFERRING AND 

APPROPRIATING $86,655 FROM THE UNOBLIGATED FUND BALANCE IN THE 

CEMETERY OPERATING FUND (316210) TO 68014 (HVAC SYSTEMS) 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1.  That the FY 2020/2021 Cemetery Operating Fund Budget be amended by 

transferring and appropriating $86,655 from the unobligated fund balance in the Cemetery 

Operating Fund (316210) to 68014 (HVAC SYSTEMS). 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, 

TEXAS, MAY 4, 2021. 

54

Item 9.



2020-2021
APPR/MOD

Beginning Resources $569,411

Approved Revenues 1,106,600

TOTAL REVENUES $1,106,600

Reserve for Encumbrances 35,700

Reserve for Cemetery Expansion 1,575,171

TOTAL RESOURCES $3,286,882

Approved Expenditures 1,022,376

    ADD: HVAC Systems 86,655

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $1,109,031

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS $1,109,031

Reserve for Cemetery Expansion 1,775,171

Ending Resources $402,680

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE
CEMETERY FUND SUMMARY

2020-2021

55

Item 9.



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 05/04/2021 

REQUESTER: Andy Henning 

PRESENTER: Andy Henning, Senior Building and Construction Projects Manager 

TITLE: 
Change Order/Amendment No. 1 with Hill & Wilkinson General 

Contractors in the amount of $3,873,421 for the balance of construction 

cost for Phase Three of the Civic Campus Master Plan project; 5% 

owner-controlled contingency in the amount of $193,671; $25,000 

allowance for security; $25,000 allowance for low voltage work; plus a 

$50,000 allowance for franchise utility work for a total funding request 

of $4,167,092 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

ANALYSIS: 

On April 6, 2021, the City Council awarded the Construction Manager at Risk (CMAR) contract to Hill 

& Wilkinson General Contractors for pre-construction services in the amount of zero dollars ($0).  The 

award provided for CMAR services including development of project estimates, preliminary 

construction schedules, value engineering proposals and constructability review during the completion 

of the design phase.  

 

The current Change Order/Amendment No. 1 in the amount of $3,873,421 represents the Guaranteed 

Maximum Price (GMP) for the scope of work currently defined in the Rouch Architects Construction 

Documents package as competitively bid by Subcontractors to Hill & Wilkinson.  Costs above and 

beyond the Hill & Wilkinson portion of the project addressed in this Change Order Amendment include 

previously approved Construction Manager pre-construction fees ($0) and a 5% owner-controlled 

contingency ($193,671); security allowance ($25,000); low voltage allowance ($25,000); plus an 

franchise utility work allowance ($50,000), all of which total the overall project budget of $4,167,092. 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

Funding in the total amount of $4,167,092 for Phase Three of the Civic Campus Master Plan Project is 

available in Municipal Facilities Capital Projects Fund (405090) W.O. 621.18 (Municipal Complex 

Phase III) 

56

Item 10.



Fund/Activity Account:

Project Title:

Current Request:

1 2 3 2+3 1+3

ACCOUNT CURRENT AVAILABLE CURRENT REVISED AMENDED

DESCRIPTION BUDGET BALANCE REQUEST BALANCE BUDGET

68540 Construction $4,146,574 $4,146,574 $0 $4,146,574 $4,146,574

68560 Eng/Con/Geo $50,000 $50,000 $0 $50,000 $50,000

68380 Security Equip $25,000 $25,000 $0 $25,000 $25,000

63010 Electrical $25,000 $25,000 $0 $25,000 $25,000

$0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $0

TOTAL $4,246,574 $4,246,574 $0 $4,246,574 $4,246,574

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE

CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET SUMMARY

405090 / 02101803

Municipal Complex Phase III

$0.00

57

Item 10.



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 05/04/2021 

REQUESTER: Kathleen Mercer 

PRESENTER: Cheryl De Leon, Deputy City Manager 

TITLE: Approve a one-time cost of living payment for non-civil service City of 

Grand Prairie employees in the total amount of $1.9 million 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

ANALYSIS: 

Salary increases were not planned for in the 2020/2021 budget due to instability in the economy last 

summer and fall.  However, the City has continued to monitor its sales tax revenues and property values 

throughout the coronavirus pandemic. This spring, the COVID-19 vaccine and other efforts to stimulate 

the City have helped stabilize the local economy. Due to the improved financial environment, we are 

requesting that City Council consider salary adjustments for employees.   

This item is a mid-year one-time cost of living payment for non-civil service City of Grand Prairie 

employees in the amount of $1.9 million. Additional compensation for Civil Service employees (Public 

Safety) is being considered through an ordinance increasing their Step Plan Pay scale.   

 

As we all know, this past year has been challenging.  Our employees found creative ways to ensure our 

residents continued to receive services and were provided world-class service in these unprecedented 

times.   

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

 

Funding for the cost of living, one-time payment is available from various funds through salary savings 

and other cost-saving methods.  

 

 

58

Item 11.



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

ORDINANCE 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 05/04/2021 

REQUESTER: Walter Shumac 

PRESENTER: Walter Shumac, Director of Transportation, Gabe Johnson, Director of 

Public Works and Rashad Jackson, Director of Planning and 

Development 

TITLE: Ordinance amending the FY 2020/2021 Capital Improvements Projects 

Budget; Professional Consultant Contract with Freese and Nichols, Inc. 

for the Main Street Roadway Improvements in the amount of $757,500  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

ANALYSIS: 

The project consists of design schematics, environmental documents, construction documents, and 

bidding phase services to reconstruct the intersection of Main Street (SH180) and Jefferson Street into a 

two-lane roundabout. 

Request for Qualifications #21017 was advertised and distributed to 39 professional engineering firms, 

including 1 Grand Prairie firm and 20 HUBs.  The City received 7 submittals from interested firms.  

Staff evaluated all the submittals and selected Freese and Nichols, Inc. as the finalist due to their 

previous engineering work and their understanding of the project with a stronger concept of the design. 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

Funding for this professional services contract in the total amount of $757,000 is available as follows: 

1. $89,997 is available in the Street Capital Project Fund (400192) WO# 02111501 (Main Street 

Roadway Improvements STRT) 

2. $667,503 is available by approving an ordinance transferring and appropriating from the unobligated 

fund balance in the Street Capital Project Fund (400192) to WO# 02111501 (Main Street Roadway 

Improvements STRT) 

  

59

Item 12.



Page 2 of 2 

BODY 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, AMENDING THE FY 

2020/2021 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT BUDGET BY TRANSFERRING AND 

APPROPRIATING  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1.  THAT THE FY 2020/2021 Capital Improvement Projects Budget be amended by 

transferring and appropriating $667,503 from the unobligated fund balance in the Street Capital Project 

Fund (400192) to WO# 02111501 (Main Street Roadway Improvements STRT) 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, 

TEXAS, MAY 4TH, 2021. 

60

Item 12.



Fund/Activity Account:

Project Title:

Current Request:

1 2 3 2+3 1+3

ACCOUNT CURRENT AVAILABLE CURRENT REVISED AMENDED

DESCRIPTION BUDGET BALANCE REQUEST BALANCE BUDGET

68560 Professional Eng Srvs $3,000,000 $89,997 $667,503 $757,500 $3,667,503

$0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $0

TOTAL $3,000,000 $89,997 $667,503 $757,500 $3,667,503

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE

CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET SUMMARY

400192 / 02111501

Main Street Roadway Improvements STRT

$667,503.00

61

Item 12.



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

ORDINANCE 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 05/04/2021 

REQUESTER: Lisa Norris 

PRESENTER: Cheryl De Leon, Deputy City Manager 

TITLE: An Ordinance amending the Step Plan Pay Scales for Grand Prairie 

Police and Fire Civil Service Employees  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve  

  

ANALYSIS: 

Salary increases were not planned for in the 2020/2021 budget due to instability in the economy last 

summer and fall.  However, the City has continued to monitor its sales tax revenues and property values 

throughout the coronavirus pandemic. This spring, the COVID-19 vaccine and other efforts to stimulate 

the City have helped stabilize the local economy. Due to the improved financial environment, we are 

requesting that City Council consider salary adjustments for employees.  As we all know, this past year 

has been challenging.  Our employees found creative ways to ensure our residents continued to receive 

services and were provided world-class service in these unprecedented times. 

After review of the Police and Fire Civil Service pay scales, it was determined that an increase in step 

plan pay scales is necessary to allow us to be competitive in our market place and allow us to continue to 

recruit and maintain world-class public safety employees.  The modification of the step plan pay scales 

equates to an expenditure of $226,000 for the remainder of this budget year.  

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

Funding for the modification of the pay step-plans is available in the budget from various funds through 

salary savings and other cost-saving methods. 

BODY 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, AMENDING THE STEP 

PLAN PAY SCALES FOR GRAND PRAIRIE POLICE AND FIRE CIVIL SERVICE 

EMPLOYEES. 
 

WHEREAS,  the City of Grand Prairie has adopted Chapter 143 of the Local Government Code, or “Civil 

Service”; and 

 

WHEREAS,  the City Council has the authority as the “Governing Body”, under Chapter 143 to establish 

62

Item 13.



Page 2 of 2 

pay rates for civil service employees; and 

 

WHEREAS,  the City Council has established Step Plan Pay Scales for Police and Fire Civil Service 

Employees; and 

 

WHEREAS,  the City Council wishes to provide a market/cost of living adjustment for Police and Fire 

Civil Service Employees;  

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS: 

 

SECTION 1.   That the City Council hereby finds the statements made in the preamble are true and 

correct. 

 

SECTION 2.  That the City Council authorizes the Step Plan Pay Scale for Police Civil Service 

employees as outlined in Exhibit “A” effective May 8, 2021.   

 

SECTION 3.   That the City Council authorizes the Step Plan Pay Scale for Fire Civil Service 

employees as outlined in Exhibit “B” effective May 8, 2021.   

 

SECTION 4.   If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this ordinance is for any 

reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such shall be deemed a 

separate, distinct and independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the 

remaining portions thereof. 

 

SECTION 5.   This ordinance shall be effective immediately upon passage and approval  and will be 

effective until repealed by the City Council or amended by a subsequent Ordinance. 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, 

TEXAS, MAY 4, 2021. 

63

Item 13.



STEP 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
YOS 0 1 2 3 4 5 6-11 12+

Hourly $31.1739 $32.7326 $34.3675 $36.0890 $37.8969 $39.7913 $41.7810 $43.0300
Est. Annually $64,842 $68,084 $71,484 $75,065 $78,826 $82,766 $86,904 $89,502

Hourly $45.0865 $47.3385 $49.7052  
Est. Annually $93,780 $98,464 $103,387

Hourly $52.2631 $54.8758 $57.6203
Est. Annually $108,707 $114,142 $119,850

Hourly $60.8794 $63.9234 $67.1196
Est. Annually $126,629 $132,961 $139,609

Hourly $77.2061
Est. Annually $160,589

A) Employees will move to the next step at annual anniversary date
B) Once employee is topped-out, the anniversary date will be October 1st
C) An employee will start at the minimum step if promoted to a higher rank and will have a new anniversary date one year from promotion date

Police Asst Chief
GRADE: 5

Police Civil Service Pay Plan
Effective 05-08-2021

Police Officer
GRADE: 1

Police Sergeant
GRADE: 2

Police Lieutenant
GRADE: 3

Police Deputy Chief
GRADE: 4

Exhibit "A" - CS Police Compensation

64

Item 13.



                   

                           

FIRE STEP 1 2 3 4 5 6 7
YOS 0 1 2 3 4 5 6+

Hourly (40) $30.7971 $32.3373 $33.9541 $35.6563 $37.4433 $39.3156 $40.2983
Hourly (56) $21.9979 $23.0980 $24.2529 $25.4687 $26.7452 $28.0825 $28.7845
Est. Annually $64,058 $67,262 $70,625 $74,165 $77,882 $81,776 $83,820

Hourly (40) $43.8082
Hourly (56) $31.2916
Est. Annually $91,121

Hourly (40) $46.4520 $48.7741
Hourly (56) $33.1799 $34.8386
Est. Annually $96,620 $101,450

Hourly (40) $51.7956 $54.3855
Hourly (56) $36.9968 $38.8468
Est. Annually $107,735 $113,122

Hourly (40) $59.2088 $62.1681
Hourly (56) $42.2920 $44.4057
Est. Annually $123,154 $129,310

Hourly (40) $70.7422 $74.2792
Est. Annually $147,144 $154,501

A) Employees will move to the next step at annual anniversary date
B) Once employee is topped-out, the anniversary date will be October 1st
C) An employee will start at the minimum step if promoted to a higher rank and will have a new anniversary date one year from promotion date

Fire Captain
GRADE: 4

Fire Battalion Chief
GRADE: 5

Assistant Fire Chief
GRADE: 6

City of Grand Prairie
Fire Civil Service Pay Plan

Effective 05-08-2021

Firefighter
GRADE: 1

Fire Engineer
GRADE: 2

Fire Lieutenant
GRADE: 3

EXHIBIT B - CS FIRE COMPENSATION

65

Item 13.



Page 1 of 2 

 

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

RESOLUTION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 05/04/2021 

REQUESTER: Cathy Patrick 

PRESENTER: Cathy Patrick, Audit Services Director 

TITLE: Resolution authorizing the City Manager to accept American Rescue 

Plan Act funding of approximately $37,541,000 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

ANALYSIS: 

The COVID-19 public health crisis and resulting economic crisis have put local governments under 

unprecedented strain.  The American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) provides emergency funding for local 

governments to remedy the mismatch between rising costs and falling revenues.  Funding will be sent 

from the Treasury Department directly to the City of Grand Prairie in two tranches – one within 60 days 

to the extent practicable, and the second, one year after the disbursement of the first tranche. 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

The City of Grand Prairie may apply for ARPA funds to use for designated purposes up to 

approximately $37,541,000 

BODY 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS,  

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ACCEPTANCE OF AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT 

FUNDING OF APPROXIMATELY $37,541,000.00 TO BE EXPENDED FOR THE PURPOSES 

OF RESPONDING TO THE COVID-19 PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY, OR ITS 

NEGATIVE ECONOMIC IMPACTS 

WHEREAS,   the City of Grand Prairie has been allocated approximately $37,541,000 in ARPA 

funding; 

WHEREAS,  this funding allows the City of Grand Prairie to obtain reimbursement or otherwise 

provides funding for providing assistance to households, small businesses, and nonprofits, or aid to 

impacted industries, such as tourism, travel, and hospitality; respond to workers performing essential 

work during the COVID-19 pandemic by providing premium pay to eligible works of the government or 

providing grants to eligible employers that have eligible workers; provide government services, to the 

66

Item 14.



Page 2 of 2 

extent COVID-19 caused a reduction of revenues collected in the most recent full fiscal year; or make 

necessary investments in water, sewer, or broadband infrastructure; 

WHEREAS,  the City of Grand Prairie will request City Council authorization to comply with all future 

United States Treasury Department guidelines regarding the ARPA 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS THAT: 

SECTION 1.  The City Manager or designee is hereby authorized to apply for and accept American 

Rescue Plan funds.  The City Manager will submit a list of proposed projects to the City Council once 

additional guidance has been issued by the Treasury Department.  American Rescue Plan Act funds 

must be allocated for revenue losses or expenditures occurring between January 27, 2020 and December 

30, 2024. 

SECTION 2.  This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval in 

accordance with the Charter of the City of Grand Prairie and it is accordingly so resolved. 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, 

TEXAS, ________________, 2021. 

67

Item 14.



Page 1 of 2 

 

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

RESOLUTION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 05/01/2021 

REQUESTER: Megan Mahan 

PRESENTER: Megan Mahan, City Attorney 

TITLE: 
Resolution authorizing an Economic Development Agreement for a 

$2,000,000 Cash Grant and Fifty-Year Ground Lease with Bolder One, 

LLC, for the Operation of an Adventure Park at EpicCentral for a 

calculated percentage of Net Operating Profit as Rent (estimated 

approximately 25%) 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve  

  

ANALYSIS: 

The City created an Office of Economic Development to oversee economic development programs 

authorized by Texas law and approved by the City Council.  Included among those programs are ones 

authorized by Chapter 380 of the Texas Local Government Code (the “Program”), to promote state and 

local economic development and to stimulate business and commercial activity in the City. Grand 

Prairie has determined that this Program will directly establish a public purpose - and that all 

transactions involving the use of public funds and resources in the establishment and administration of 

the Program as authorized will promote state and local economic development and will stimulate and 

promote business and commercial activity in the City. 

 

The City has negotiated with Bolder One, LLC (“Developer”) to develop an adventure park that will be 

located at EpicCentral on City owned land. As part of the Lease Agreement negotiations, the City has 

offered a $2,000,000 cash grant incentive to the Developer. 

 

This will be a 50-year ground lease. The Developer will be responsible for all costs of construction, 

operation and maintenance during the term of the lease. The rent paid to the city will be based on a 

waterfall calculation that will be dependent on the total construction cost and the amount of equity 

required for financing, but City estimates it will be around 25% of the Net Operating Profit. 

 

This item was submitted to the Finance and Government Committee on May 4, 2021 and the Committee 

recommended its approval. 

 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

At the May 3rd meeting, the Sports Corporation will consider an item funding $1 million of this grant 

through a transfer to the Capital Reserve Fund. If the Sports Corp does not approve this transfer, the City 

68

Item 15.



Page 2 of 2 

will bring back an ordinance at the next meeting to authorize payment of the $1 million from the Capital 

Reserve account. The remaining $1 million will be funded by a transfer from TIF #1 fund to be ratified 

at their next board meeting. 

 

BODY 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, TO ENTER INTO A 

CHAPTER 380 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH BOLDER ONE, LLC 

("DEVELOPER") FOR THE CONSTRUCTION AND OPERATION OF AN ADVENTURE 

PARK IN EPICCENTRAL 

WHEREAS, the City of Grand Prairie wishes to enter into this agreement for the Developer to construct 

and operate an adventure park at EpicCentral and it is in the public interest to do so; and 

 

WHEREAS,  a cash grant of $2,000,000 will provide help provide incentive for a high quality project 

within Grand Prairie; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is in the public interest to enter into a Chapter 380 

Program Agreement for Economic Development Incentives. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS: 

Section 1.  THAT the granting of this Chapter 380 Economic Development Agreement and Lease 

Agreement is approved under the terms described in this Resolution and the City Manager is hereby 

authorized to execute contracts to effectuate this approval.   

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, 

TEXAS, ON THIS THE 4st DAY OF MAY, 2021. 

69

Item 15.



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 05/04/2021 

REQUESTER: Terrence R. Harbin  

PRESENTER: Marty Wieder, Director of Economic Development  

TITLE: Resolution granting 380 Incentive Agreement and entering into a 

separated sales tax contract with Aerofirma Corporation for the Prairie 

Gate Phase Two Project to rebate 50% of the $.01 documented general 

sales tax revenue on construction materials purchased to complete the 

new development  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

ANALYSIS: 

Aerofirma Corporation developed Phase I of Prairie Gate—which included 264 units with a total 

construction cost of $32,000,000.  Aerofirma is now preparing to break ground on Phase II of Prairie 

Gate, which will total 326,826 square feet in 5 apartment buildings.  These 199 Phase II units will be a 

mix of one and two bedrooms—and units will have attached garages. Aerofirma representatives 

anticipate a 14-month schedule to complete Phase II of Prairie Gate. 

Aerofirma previously purchased the site of the former Town & Country Furniture Store and retail spaces 

fronting Pioneer Parkway—and City Council approved a separated sales tax contract for Aerofirma to 

situs or source construction sales tax to Grand Prairie for a mixed-use project known as The Gibson.  

City Council likewise granted Aerofirma a source agreement in association with The Retreat, a 141,504 

square foot, 154-unit market rate senior apartment community located at 2902 South Belt Line Road, in 

December 2019.  At that time, staff informed Council that Aerofirma would return to Council later for 

consideration of separated sales tax contracts associated with Phase II of Prairie Gate.   

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

Projected Investment, Real estate improvements:  $36,000,000 

Projected Taxable Materials Costs—$12,000,000 

Projected Sales Tax Revenue—$240,000 

Projected Sales Tax Amount Rebated (associated with situs- 50% of 1%):  $60,000  

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, TO ENTER INTO A 

CHAPTER 380 PROGRAM AGREEMENT FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVES 

WITH AEROFIRMA CORPORATION GRANTING A REBATE 

 

70

Item 16.



Page 2 of 2 

WHEREAS, Aerofirma Corporation desires to develop 326,826 square feet and 199 units of market rate, 

apartments in association with Phase II of Prairie Gate, located at 3972 Westcliff Rd, Grand Prairie, TX, 

75052; and  

 

WHEREAS, construction of these facilities will require Aerofirma to invest $36,000,000 in new 

building improvements—with approximately $12,000,000 of the materials and services being sales 

taxable; and 

 

WHEREAS, a partial construction sales tax rebate of 50% of the $.01 documented general sales tax revenue on 

construction materials purchased to complete the new development will induce Aerofirma to situs construction 

sales tax revenues on building materials to Grand Prairie (“the Incentive”); and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is in the public interest to enter into a Chapter 380 

Program Agreement for Economic Development Incentives and partially rebate certain sales tax 

revenue. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS THAT: 

 

SECTION 1. the granting of the Incentive through a Chapter 380 incentive agreement is approved in 

accordance with the terms of this Resolution and the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute 

contracts to effectuate this approval. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, 

TEXAS, ON THIS THE 4th DAY OF MAY 2021. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

71

Item 16.



 

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

RESOLUTION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 05/4/21 

REQUESTER: Megan Mahan 

PRESENTER: Megan Mahan, City Attorney 

TITLE: Resolution denying Oncor Electric Delivery Company's 

application to increase its Distribution Cost Recovery Factor to 

increase electric distribution rates within the City 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve  

  

ANALYSIS: 

On April 8, 2021, Oncor Electric Delivery Company LLC (“Oncor” or “Company”) filed 

an Application for Approval to Amend its Distribution Cost Recovery Factor (“DCRF”) to Increase 

Distribution Rates with each of the cities in their service area.  In the filing, the Company asserts 

that it is seeking an increase in total distribution revenue requirement by approximately 

$97,826,277.  

The resolution authorizes the City to join with the Steering Committee of Cities Served by 

Oncor (“OCSC”) to evaluate the filing, determine whether the filing complies with law, and if 

lawful, to determine what further strategy, including settlement, to pursue.  

On May 4, 2021, the Finance and Government Committee recommended the denial of the 

DCRF application. 

Purpose of the Resolution: 

 The purpose of the Resolution is to deny the DCRF application proposed by Oncor.   

 

Explanation of “Be It Resolved” Paragraphs: 
 

1. This section authorizes the City to participate with OCSC as a party in the 

Company’s DCRF filing, PUC Docket No. 51996. 

 

2. This section authorizes the hiring of Lloyd Gosselink and consultants to review the 

filing, negotiate with the Company, and make recommendations to the City regarding reasonable 

rates.  Additionally, it authorizes OCSC to direct any necessary administrative proceedings or court 

litigation associated with an appeal of this application filed with the PUC.   

72

Item 17.



3. This paragraph finds that the Company’s application is unreasonable and should be 

denied. 

 

 4. This section states that the Company’s current rates shall not be changed.   

 

 5. The Company will reimburse Cities for their reasonable rate case expenses.  Legal 

counsel and consultants approved by OCSC will submit monthly invoices that will be forwarded to 

Oncor for reimbursement.   

 

6. This section recites that the Resolution was passed at a meeting that was open to the 

public and that the consideration of the Resolution was properly noticed. 

7. This section provides that Oncor and counsel for OCSC will be notified of the City’s 

action by sending a copy of the approved and signed Resolution to counsel. 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

none 

BODY 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS FINDING THAT ONCOR 

ELECTRIC DELIVERY COMPANY LLC’S APPLICATION FOR APPROVAL TO 

AMEND ITS DISTRIBUTION COST RECOVERY FACTOR TO INCREASE 

DISTRIBUTION RATES WITHIN THE CITY SHOULD BE DENIED; AUTHORIZING 

PARTICIPATION WITH OCSC; AUTHORIZING THE HIRING OF LEGAL COUNSEL 

AND CONSULTING SERVICES; FINDING THAT THE CITY’S REASONABLE RATE 

CASE EXPENSES SHALL BE REIMBURSED BY THE COMPANY; FINDING THAT THE 

MEETING AT WHICH THIS RESOLUTION IS PASSED IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AS 

REQUIRED BY LAW; REQUIRING NOTICE OF THIS RESOLUTION TO THE 

COMPANY AND LEGAL COUNSEL. 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Grand Prairie, Texas (“City”) is an electric utility 

customer of Oncor Electric Delivery Company LLC (“Oncor” or “Company”) with an 

interest in the rates and charges of Oncor; and 

WHEREAS, the Steering Committee of Cities Served by Oncor (“OCSC”) is a 

coalition of similarly situated cities served by Oncor that have joined together to 

efficiently and cost effectively review and respond to electric issues affecting rates 

charged in Oncor’s service area in matters before the Public Utility Commission 

(“Commission”) and the courts; and  

WHEREAS, on or about April 8, 2021, Oncor filed with the Commission an 

Application for Approval to Amend its Distribution Cost Recovery Factor (“DCRF”), 

Commission Docket No. 51996, seeking to increase its total distribution revenue 

requirement by approximately $97,826,277; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Grand Prairie will cooperate with OCSC in coordinating 

their review of Oncor’s DCRF filing with designated attorneys and consultants, prepare 

73

Item 17.



a common response, negotiate with the Company, and direct any necessary litigation, to 

resolve issues in the Company’s filing; and 

WHEREAS, all electric utility customers residing in the City will be impacted by 

this ratemaking proceeding if Oncor’s Application is granted; and  

WHEREAS, working with the OCSC to review the rates charged by Oncor allows 

members to accomplish more collectively than each city could do acting alone; and 

WHEREAS, OCSC’s members and attorneys recommend that members who have 

retained original jurisdiction over electric utility rates deny Oncor’s DCRF.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS: 

74

Item 17.



Page 4 of 4 

 

SECTION 1. That the City is authorized to participate with OCSC in Commission 

Docket No. 51996. 

SECTION 2. That, subject to the right to terminate employment at any time, the City 

of Grand Prairie  hereby authorizes the hiring of the law firm of Lloyd Gosselink Rochelle & 

Townsend, P.C. and consultants to negotiate with the Company, make recommendati ons to 

the City regarding reasonable rates, and to direct any necessary administrative proceedings 

or court litigation associated with an appeal Oncor’s DCRF application.  

SECTION 3. That the rates proposed by Oncor to be recovered through its DCRF 

charged to customers located within the City limits should be denied.  

SECTION 4. That the Company should continue to charge its existing rates to customers 

within the City. 

SECTION 5. That the City’s reasonable rate case expenses shall be reimbursed in full 

by Oncor within 30 days of the adoption of this Resolution, and within 30 days of presenting 

monthly bills to Oncor thereafter.  

SECTION 6. That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 

this Resolution is passed is open to the public  as required by law and the public notice of the 

time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required.  

SECTION 7. That a copy of this Resolution shall be sent to J. Michael Sherburne, Vice 

President – Regulatory, Oncor Electric Delivery Company LLC, 1616 Woodall Rodgers 

Freeway, Dallas, Texas 75202; to Tab R. Urbantke, Hunton Andrews Kurth LLP, 1445 Ross 

Avenue, Suite 3700, Dallas, Texas 7520; and to Thomas Brocato, General Counsel to OCSC, 

at Lloyd Gosselink Rochelle & Townsend, P.C., P.O. Box 1725, Austin, TX 78767-1725, or 

tbrocato@lglawfirm.com. 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, 

TEXAS, MAY 5, 2021. 

75

Item 17.


	Top
	Item 1.	PRES: Internal Audit FY21 2nd Quarter Report
	F&amp;G FY21 1st Qtr Report
	Internal Audit FY21 2nd Quarter Report

	Item 2.	PRES: Second Quarter FY21 - Parks Enterprise Financial Reports
	PRES 2Q Parks Enterprise Financial Reports
	PRES 2Q PARKS ENTERPRISE FINANCIAL REPORTS (2)

	Item 3.	Homestead Exemption Discussion
	Communication

	Item 4.	Insurance Fund Monthly Review
	Insurance Fund Monthly Review through March 2021
	Ins Report through March 2021

	Item 5.	Minutes of the April 6, 2021, Finance and Government Committee
	Agenda Item Minutes from the April 6, 2021, Finance and Government Committee Meeting
	Minutes from the April 6, 2021, Finance and Government Committee Meeting

	Item 6.	Quarterly Investment Report (F&G 5/4 consent)
	Quarterly Investment Report Communication
	March 2021 Investment Report
	December 2020 Investment Report

	Item 7.	Ratify Purchase - Dectron Unit at EPIC - McMillan James (05/04/21 F & G Consent)
	2021 - Ratify purchase - Dectron Unit at EPIC - McMillan James
	Ratify Purchase - Dectron Unit - McMillian James

	Item 8.	Playground Replacement - McFalls West Park - GameTime (Total Recreation) (05/04/21 F & G Consent)
	GameTime Contract - Playground Equip McFalls West
	Playground Replacement - McFalls West - GameTime

	Item 9.	GPMG HVAC Replacement (05/04/21 F & G Consent)
	2021 - GPMG AC Replacement (002)
	Cemetery Mini FS

	Item 10.	CO/Amend 1 with Hill & Wilkinson General Contractors (F&G)
	City Hall Ph 3
	WO 621.18

	Item 11.	Approve a one-time cost of living adjustments for non-civil and civil servant City of Grand Prairie employees, and an additional increase in pay for civil servants. (F&G 5-4)
	Non Civil Svc salary adjustments FY21-1

	Item 12.	Design contract with Freese and Nichols for Roundabout (F&G 05/04/21 Consent)
	21017 - Roundabout - Design Contract with Freese &amp (1)
	FIS WO 621.115

	Item 13.	Civil Service Salary Adjustment (F&G 5-4)
	Civil Service Salary Adjustment (002)
	Exhibit A CS Police Compensation
	Exhibit B Fire Pay

	Item 14.	Acceptance of American Rescue Plan Act Funds (F&G 05/04/21)
	ARP Resolution 05.04.21

	Item 15.	Bolder Lease (F&G 5/4)
	agenda item

	Item 16.	RES: Prairie Gate Phase Two Project (F&G 05/04)
	Prairie Gate Phase Two Project - Council Communication

	Item 17.	Oncor denial of rate increase (F&G 5-4)
	ITEM-Staff-oncor

	Bottom

